



07400

 $2 \le 1$

Station and the second

 7

 - -

MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS-1963-A



423422

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Printed in the United States of America. Available from National Technical Information Service U.S. Department of Commerce 5285 Port Royal Road, Springfield, Virginia 22161 NTIS price codes—Printed Copy: A03 Microfiche A01

This report was prepared as an account of work sponsored by an agency of the United States Government. Neither the United States Government nor any agency thereof, nor any of their employees, makes any warranty, express or implied, or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product, or process disclosed, or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights. Reference herein to any specific commercial product, process, or service by trade name, trademark, manufacturer, or otherwise, does not necessarily constitute or imply its endorsement, recommendation, or favoring by the United States Government or any agency thereof. The views and opinions of authors expressed herein do not necessarily state or reflect those of the United States Government or any agency thereof.

REPORT DOCUMENTAT		READ INSTRUCTIONS
REPORT NUMBER		BEFORE COMPLETING FORM 3. RECIPIENT'S CATALOG NUMBER
TITLE (and Subtitio) Chemical Charac		5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVER
Toxicologic Evaluation of Ai		Task Summary Report
Generating, Monitoring and C		Sept. 1979 - Nov. 1982
Aerosols for Inhalation Cham		6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER
		A. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(#)
AUTHOR(.) Holmberg, R. W., Moneyhun, J. H., and		Army Project Orders
Gayle, T. M.		9600, 0027, 1807, and 28
		····, ····, ····, ····
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND AD		10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TAS
Oak Ridge National Laborator	у	
P. O. Box X		62777A3E162777A878
Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830		
U.S. Army Medical Research and		12. REPORT DATE November 1982
Command	we actoratinente	13. NUMBER OF PAGES
Fort Detrick, Frederick, Mar	yland 21701	40
MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS		15. SECURITY CLASS. (of this report)
U.S. Army Medical Bioenginee	ring Research and	Unclassified
Development Laboratory		
Fort Detrick, Frederick, Mar	yland 21701	154. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING
- DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)	<u> </u>	<u></u>
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract	entered in Block 20, if different in	Sen Report)
7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract o	entered in Block 20, if different in	na Report)
	entered in Block 20, if different in	sen Report)
. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES		
. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES		
. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	every and identify by block number)
. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	every and identify by block number urants, Toxicology, I) Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposu
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on revorce elde il necel VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obsci Chamber, Monitoring, Particle 	urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor) Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposur mogeneity, Inhalation
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde il necel VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obscr Chamber, Monitoring, Particle ABSTRACT (Continue en reverse edde N nearee 	every and identify by block number urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor reary and identify by block number)) Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposur mogeneity, Inhalation
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde il neccel VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obsci Chamber, Monitoring, Particle ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse edd N messes A system has been designed at ling concentrated petroleum i 	overy and identify by block number urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor wery and identify by block number) nd built for generat: aerosols for an inhal	Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposur mogeneity, Inhalation ing, monitoring and control- lation toxicology study of a
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde il neces VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obsci Chamber, Monitoring, Particle ADSTRACT (Continue on reverse edd N neares A system has been designed at ling concentrated petroleum a diesel fuel aerosol such as 	urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor may and identify by block number) nd built for generat: aerosols for an inhal is produced in the mi	Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposur mogeneity, Inhalation ing, monitoring and control- lation toxicology study of a ilitary vehicle engine exhau
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde il necesive VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obsci Chamber, Monitoring, Particle ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse eth N messes ASSTRACT (Continue on reverse eth N messes 	urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor easy and identify by block number nd built for generat: aerosols for an inhal is produced in the mi enerator, an on-line	Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposu mogeneity, Inhalation ing, monitoring and control- lation toxicology study of ilitary vehicle engine exhau light scattering particle
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde il necesive VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obsci Chamber, Monitoring, Particle ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse edd N mease A system has been designed at ling concentrated petroleum a diesel fuel aerosol such as smoke system (VEESS). The g monitor, and a spent aerosol 	urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor way and identify by block number nd built for generat: aerosols for an inhal is produced in the mi enerator, an on-line clean up system are	Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposur mogeneity, Inhalation ing, monitoring and control- lation toxicology study of ilitary vehicle engine exha- light scattering particle discussed. An addition to
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde il necesive VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obsci Chamber, Monitoring, Particle ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse elde N messes ABSTRACT (Continue on reverses ABSTRACT (C	urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor may and identify by block number nd built for generat: aerosols for an inhal is produced in the mi enerator, an on-line clean up system are inarize the flow to t	Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposur mogeneity, Inhalation ing, monitoring and control- lation toxicology study of ilitary vehicle engine exhau- light scattering particle discussed. An addition to insure a homogeneous expose
 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde il necesive VEESS, Aerosols, Smoke, Obsci Chamber, Monitoring, Particle ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse edd N mease A system has been designed at ling concentrated petroleum a diesel fuel aerosol such as smoke system (VEESS). The g monitor, and a spent aerosol 	wary and identify by block number urants, Toxicology, I e Sensor, Chamber Hor wary and identify by block number) nd built for generat: aerosols for an inhal is produced in the mi enerator, an on-line clean up system are inarize the flow to . The design parameter	Diesel Oil, Fog Oil, Exposu mogeneity, Inhalation ing, monitoring and control- lation toxicology study of ilitary vehicle engine exha- light scattering particle discussed. An addition to insure a homogeneous expos- ters are based on experience

UNCLASSIFIED

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Date Entered)

20. 'toxicology experiment for the past two years. Aerosol concentrations from 0.25 to 20 mg/L (routinely to 6 mg/L) have been developed for periods up to six hours. The generators, the monitoring system, and the spent aerosol removal system have also been found effective for less volatile petroleum based obscurants such as Fog Oil. This report emphasizes the hardware and electronic control system; the characterization of the aerosol with respect to both its physical and chemical properties (Ref. 6) and a discussion of the toxicology (Ref. 3) have been presented elsewhere.

UNCLASSIFIED

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Data Entered)

AD ORNL/TM-8903

Chemical Characterization and Toxicologic Evaluation of Airborne Mixtures

1. · · ·

GENERATING, MONITORING AND CONTROLLING PETROLEUM AEROSOLS FOR INHALATION CHAMBER STUDIES

TASK SUMMARY REPORT

PREPARED BY

R. W. Holmberg J. H. Moneyhun T. M. Gayle

Bio/Organic Analysis Section Analytical Chemistry Division Oak Ridge National Laboratory Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830

Date Published: October 1983

Supported by

U. S. ARMY MEDICAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COMMAND Fort Detrick, Frederick, MD 21701 Army Project Order Nos. 9600, 0027, 1807, and 2802

Project Officer: James C. Eaton

OAK RIDGE NATIONAL LABORATORY Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830 operated by UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION for the U. S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Under Contract No. W-7405-eng-26



TABLE OF CONTENTS

e

LIST OF FIGURES	2
LIST OF TABLES	3
INTRODUCTION	5
GENERATOR DESIGN	6
CHAMBER DESIGN AND MODIFICATION	9
MONITORING AND CONTROL	17
TEMPERATURE CONTROL OF AEROSOL GENERATOR	25
SAFETY CONTROL SYSTEM	25
FOG OIL	31
LITERATURE CITED	34
PERSONNEL	36
PUBLICATIONS	37
DISTRIBUTION LIST	38

Page

LIST OF FIGURES

		1.450
1.	Diesel Fuel Aerosol Generator	7
2.	Metering Pump-Diesel Fuel Aerosol Generating System	8
3.	Exposure System Schematic	10
4.	Diesel Fuel Aerosol Entering Exposure Chamber Without Laminarizing Screens	11
5.	Laminarizing Screens and Dispersing Cone	12
6.	Inhalation Chamber Filling with DF2 Aerosol-Laminarizing Screens in Place	13
7.	Inhalation Chamber Emptying-Laminarizing Screens in Place .	14
8.	Multisensor Response Showing Homogeneity of DF2 Aerosol	16
9.	Filling and Emptying Dynamics of Inhalation Chamber	18
10.	LED-Phototransistor Aerosol Sensor	20
11.	Basic Aerosol Concentration Measuring System	21
12.	Schematic of Amplifier-Integrator Readout Module	22
13.	Readout Module with Case and Probe	23
14.	Probe Assembly Detail	24
15.	Particle Sensor Response vs. Diesel Oil Aerosol Concentration	26
16.	Temperature Control Network for One Aerosol Generator	27
17.	Safety Shutdown Control	28
18.	Relay System for Alarm and Shutdown	30
19.	Particle Sensor Responses to Fog Oil Aerosols Concentration = 0.5 mg/L	32
20.	Particle Sensor Responses to Fog Oil Aerosols Concentration = 5 mg/L	33

Page

.

and the second second

Hard and the second sec

4

LIST OF TABLES

۰.

Page

1.	Spatial Homogeneity Summary for Chamber with	
	Laminarizing Screens	15

INTRODUCTION

Two Army obscurant systems are based on the use of petroleum aerosols. One, designated by the acronym VEESS, for Vehicle Engine Exhaust Smoke System, uses DF2 grade diesel fuel, delivered in aerosol form, from a diesel powered vehicle such as a military tank.⁽¹⁾ In this system the same oil that powers the tank is pumped into the hot exhaust manifold directly after the diesel engine where it immediately vaporizes. The vapors are carried through the exhaust system and forcibly ejected into the air, along with the normal exhaust gases. The oil vapors contacting the cooler air condense to form a dense aerosol that is used for screening purposes. The other system uses "Fog Oil", a less volatile petroleum fraction similar in physical properties to 10W lubricating oil. It is deployed in portable generators such as the $M3A3^{(2)}$. The aerosol generation is similarly an evaporationcondensation process. The Fog Oil is introduced into a pulsed combuster, is vaporized, and is condensed as aerosol particles when expelled into the cooler air.

Both of these systems are designed to obscure large areas. Typically they use oil at a rate of one gallon per minute, most of which condenses to form the obscurant aerosol. The size of such equipment and the difficulties attendant to handling and disposing of such large volumes of smoke precluded their use in a toxicology laboratory environment. This report then describes a generator and exposure system for rodents which operates on a much reduced scale (oil flow rates of a few milliliters per minute) yet produces smoke which has many of the properties of that produced in the field. In this report the generator and the exposure facility as they apply to the diesel fuel aerosol are described. The generator has been tested and found to operate satisfactorily on Fog Oil in laboratory pilot studies, but operating experience in large scale inhalation exposures has yet to be obtained. Its operation with Fog Oil will be discussed briefly later.

The predominant constituent of a smoke cloud from the VEESS system is the diesel fuel in aerosol form. The noxious constituents of normal diesel exhaust, typically carbon monoxide, nitrogen oxides, unburned hydrocarbons and the black sooty particles, form but a minor fraction of the aerosol. For example, particulates in normal diesel exhaust emissions are of the order of milligrams per cubic meter while the aerosol levels that we are concerned with are of the order of grams per cubic meter. In the toxicology study that is now underway⁽³⁾, these constituents of normal diesel exhaust emissions are not introduced into the system. To do so, for example, adding a small diesel engine to the exposure system, would have posed engineering problems that would have strained the resources and timing of the investigation without necessarily gaining in relevancy.

The generator, described below in detail, does have provisions for introducing the constituents of normal diesel exhausts and, in particular, studying the chemical effects of the combustion gases on the diesel oil. Normally a diesel engine operates with a stoichiometric excess of air to fuel by approximately a factor of two. In the VEESS system, the diesel oil is vaporized at high temperature in an atmosphere of these combustion products: nitrogen, carbon dioxide, water vapor, and unconsumed oxygen. It is the oxygen that most likely can react with the oil to produce compounds not present in the pure diesel oil aerosol.

GENERATOR DESIGN

A detailed diagram of the generator is shown as Figure 1. As mentioned above, it was designed to be able to simulate the processes that occur in the much larger VEESS system using diesel oil. A one kilowatt Vycor immersion heater is inserted in one end of a one meter long, one inch diameter stainless steel tube. This region then simulates the manifold of the diesel engine. The temperature is controlled with a thermocouple and its associated controller. The petroleum oil is injected through a small tube located near the tip of the heater. At the operating temperature (typically 600°C), it flash evaporates and is carried down the remainder of the generator tube.

This second region, about 2/3 of the length of the tube, represents the exhaust system of the diesel vehicle. It was made sufficiently long so that the oil vapors and exhaust gases could cool and exit at temperatures approximating those in the large scale vehicle. To prevent excessive cooling a glass fiber insulated tape heater is wound externally around the tube in this region. This heater is also monitored with a thermocouple so that the temperature of the exiting gases and vapors can be controlled. Typically this temperature is maintained at 350°C.

The aerosol concentration is controlled by the rate of air flow through the exposure system and by the rate at which oil is delivered into the generator. Some losses of aerosol particles do occur before they reach the chamber and, with diesel oil, losses by evaporation of Oil is metered into the its more volatile constituents can occur. generator with a system shown as Figure 2. A metering pump, whose flow rate is controlled by means of a micrometer ajustment, supplies oil to the generator at a constant rate. To protect the pump and to prevent plugging of the delivery system, the diesel oil passes through a small filter (Balston Filter Products Cat. #9933-05 grade DQ) before it enters the pump. The pump is primed and gas bubbles are removed from the line without disassembly of the system. The three way valve (Figure 2) is turned to the siphon position and suction is applied until bubble free oil flows through the filter and pump. A pressure gauge to monitor the delivery pressure is also included in the system. The pump is capable of producing pressures high enough to burst the Teflon delivery The pressure gauge allows the operator to detect abnormally tubing. high pressures that occur if the delivery tubing becomes restricted.

Oil is injected onto the Vycor heater very near the monitoring thermocouple and always with the carrier gas flowing. This gas flows





-8-

at 10 liters per minute. For toxicology experiments pure nitrogen is used. It is supplied to all chambers from a regulated liquid nitrogen storage vessel. The gas pressure in the delivery line is monitored. The heaters and the exposure system will shut down if the line pressure is inadequate to supply the requisite nitrogen flow.

CHAMBER DESIGN AND MODIFICATION

A schematic diagram of the entire exposure system is shown as Figure 3. Existing chambers of the Rochester type were used. They are square in cross section, with tapered end sections and have a total volume of 1.4 cubic meters. They have a capacity for 45 rat cages hung in five tiers. Conditioned air is fed to the chambers from the top, exhausts at the bottom and is finally filtered through absolute filters provided as a building facility. These chambers are operated with an air throughput of 420 L/min (15 cfm) at a slight negative pressure (1 cm water).

It was found that the existing chamber design was not adequate to distribute the aerosol uniformly throughout the exposure volume. The aerosol stream did not at all disperse in the top section as might be naively expected from the tapered cross section. Rather, it entered as a discrete plume (Figure 4) flowing, with no cages present, directly to the bottom before dispersing. The chamber filled to a steady concentration very slowly and almost exponentially. It should be noted that this phenomenon, easily visualized in our experiments with a highly concentrated aerosol, is probably quite general with chambers of this design. The tapered entry section is of little value in dispersing the aerosol uniformly. This of course posed a serious threat of nonuniform exposures. Not only was the buildup to a uniform concentration slow and uncertain, but, more importantly for this experiment, the aerosol plume would impinge preferentially on the animals in the top center tier of cages.

To correct this problem, an assembly consisting of a dispersing cone and two laminarizing screens (Figure 5) was designed and installed in the upper tapered section of the chamber (see Figure 3). The screens were constructed of 0.080 inch perforated aluminum plate with 10 percent free opening area. Their edges were fitted with neoprene rubber gaskets and they were pressed tightly to the walls of the chamber to prevent preferential flow around their edges. In Figure 5, a gasket has not yet been installed on the upper screen. The cone serves to break up the entering plume and to introduce turbulence above the screens.

With the screens in place, the flow through the chamber was nearly laminar. This is illustrated (Figures 6 and 7) by photographs of the chamber taken shortly after the start of aerosol generation and as the chamber emptied with the generator off. In both cases the front of the advancing or retreating smoke cloud can be clearly seen. The boundary is not discrete as one would expect from perfectly laminar flow.



. . ٢, · · · ·

1

.

• • • .

-10-

and the second states in the state of the second states of the second states of the second states of the second



Figure 4. Diesel Fuel Aerosol Entering Exposure Chamber Without Laminarizing Screens



Figure 5. Laminarizing Screens and Dispersing Cone



ł

Figure 6. Inhalation Chamber Filling with DF2 Aerosol-Laminarizing Screens in Place

-13-



Î



Gradients created by the greater density of the aerosol-laden air relative to the air it displaces, contribute to this effect. Note that the boundary is better defined in the case (Figure 7) where the denser aerosol is being displaced by filtered air.

The homogeneity of the aerosol concentration throughout the chamber has also been investigated with ORNL/Gayle particle sensors⁽⁴⁾. For this experiment six sensors were calibrated to respond equally to the aerosol concentration and then arrayed in a horizontal plane in the chamber. Their output was fed to a multipoint recorder. In five separate runs the response at each cage level was recorded. The recordings for three of these levels are shown in Figure 8, and the data for all levels are summarized in Table 1. In general, after the aerosol concentration has equilibrated, the spatial and temporal homogeneity exhibits a spread of about 10 percent about the average.

Shelf Number ^b	Median Sensor Response (mv)	Deviation from Median (percent)
2	31	8
3	33	8
4	32.5	11
5	32.5	9
6	33	10

TABLE 1. SPATIAL HOMOGENIETY SUMMARY FOR CHAMBER WITH LAMINARIZING SCREENS^a

Aerosol concentration 3 mg/L

a. Data taken 24 min. after start of run.

b. Shelf 2 corresponds to top tier of cages.

During these experiments, we observed that even small leaks into the chamber make it difficult to maintain the required homogeneous aerosol. With the chamber operating at slight negative pressures, as is conventional, leaks manifest themselves as jets of incoming air that dilute the aerosol. These jets persist for long distances in the chamber and if unfortunately located can give rise to nonuniform exposures at the site of some of the cages. We suspect that this phenomenon is quite general for chambers operated in this mode, but is not easily detected with low concentration aerosols.



Figure 8. Multisensor Response Showing Homogeneity of DF2 Aerosol

The filling and emptying dynamics of the chamber are important, particularly for short duration exposures. The rate of filling and emptying of these chambers can be illustrated more quantitatively using on-line particle sensors. Two matched sensors were mounted in the chamber, one just above the first tier of cages and one just below the bottom tier. The response is shown in Figure 9. Aerosol concentrations attain 90 percent of steady state in about 10 minutes and, similarly, the chamber empties in about that time.

The exposure facility must accomodate the lengthy exposures to highly concentrated petroleum oil aerosols that will be used in the toxicology studies. The aerosol must be properly disposed of after passing through the chambers. It would be unacceptable to directly vent these fumes into a crowded laboratory environment. Under some exposure conditions, over one liter of liquid oil is consumed in a single chamber in a six hour exposure. The existing facility had only high efficiency filters, designed to remove particulates at concentrations very much lower than would be encountered here. With the concentrated liquid aerosols, these filters plug so rapidly that they could not be used for as long as a single exposure. We have found that tubular coalescing filters are ideally suited for this application. They consist of tubular arrays of thick fibrous filters. The aerosol is injected into the inner annulus where it is removed from the stream, and, in passing through the filter, coalesces to bulk liquid which flows to a reservoir for subsequent disposal. The coalescing filters used in this work were supplied by the Balston Co., Lexington, MA. We have used somewhat oversized arrays of these filters after each chamber to maintain an acceptable pressure drop for the air handling pumps. They remove greater than 99.5% of the aerosol and have required replacement only semianually.

MONITORING AND CONTROL

In a toxicology experiment, exposures are made on a routine basis over an extended period of time. In this section we describe the techniques and devices used to control and document the exposure levels and to provide a safety system to prevent accidental overexposures to animals. Again, the emphasis will be on the diesel oil experiments, but because of their physical similarities, our remarks also pertain to Fog Oil exposure systems.

The primary method for measuring aerosol concentrations, particularly at the high concentrations of interest here, is to collect the aerosol on retentive filter pads at a measured flow rate for a given time and determine the weight gained. Cambridge glass fiber filters⁽⁵⁾ typically 45 mm in diameter are used. These filters are widely used to quantitate and analyze cigarette smoke. They quantitatively remove aerosol particles from the flowing gas stream and, should chemical analyses of the samples be needed, show very low organic impurity backgrounds. Calibrated pumping systems, usually operating at one liter per minute, are used to draw the smoke into the filters.





Samples are taken for a sufficient length of time to collect about 50 mg of particulate matter so that weighing errors are minimized.

Gravimetric pad sampling techniques, as described above, are laborious, are subject to errors in a routine environment, and can be used to measure aerosol concentrations only at infrequent intervals. Online electronic monitoring with ORNL/Gayle particle sensors has been used to monitor the aerosol concentrations in the chambers on a routine The aerosol is monitored routinely at two locations in the basis. exposure chamber: just above the top tier of animal cages and just below the bottom tier. The active element in the sensor is a small solid state light emitting diode-phototransistor combination, 5.5 mm diameter by 4 mm long. It consists of a commercially available light emitting gallium arsenide diode mounted directly beside a high gain phototransistor with an optical separator between the two and a window covering the assembly (TRW/Optron Type OPB-710; TRW/Optron, Carrolton, Texas 75006). Figure 10 is a view of the sensor mounted in the end of a 1/4 inch tube suitable for insertion into a chamber. Figure 11 is a pictorial representation of a sensor with its amplifier-integrator readout module. The module consists of the necessary power supply for the light emitting diode together with amplifier for the phototransistor signal, digital readout of instantaneous concentration, digital display of integrated signal (dose) and a 100 mv (full scale) d.c. output signal for recording and control purposes. The schematic of the amplifier-integrator module is given in Figure 12, while Figure 13 shows a completed unit with a sensor probe. Details of the probe assembly are given in Figure 14.

The phototransistor section of the sensor is responsive to room light, particularly frequencies in the near infared. Accordingly it is far less responsive to stray fluorescent light than to light from incandescent sources. Small amounts of steady light can be cancelled out by the readout module's "Zero" control. At the aerosol concentrations of interest here (1 to 10 mg/L) steady stray fluorescent light can be tolerated, although it is advisable to shade the chambers to prevent interference from flickering light and moving shadows. The sensor is also an excellent object sensor, requiring the probe to be mounted so that no object is directly in front for a distance of several centimeters.

Each sensor has its own characteristic sensitivity due to manufacturing variations and therefore must be individually calibrated against an actual aerosol. This is done by comparing gravimetric pad samples of the aerosol taken over a known time period with the integrated (or averaged) sensor response provided by the digital integrator on the readout module. The circuitry of the module has adequate adjustment provided (span and gain controls) for standardizing the output over the range of manufacturing variations. In practice, all probe assemblies are calibrated to give approximately 10mv of output for an aerosol concentration of 1 mg/L.



OPNL-DWG 81-13166







Figure 12. Schematic of Amplifier-Integrator Readout Module



ORNL-DWG 81-23284



NOTES

- AND/OR USING A THIN INSULATING FIBER WASHER SANDWICHED BETWEEN 1. OPTRON OPB 710 SENSOR CASE MUST BE ELECTRICALLY INSULATED FROM METAL TUBE. THIS CAN BE DONE BY PRECOATING SURFACES WITH EPOXY AND LETTING IT HARDEN BEFORE ASSEMBLY OF SENSOR ON TUBE END SENSOR AND TUBE
- IN FINAL ATTACHMENT OF SENSOR TO TUBING EXTEND EPOXY DOWN INSIDE TUBING FOR SECURE ATTACHMENT. SENSOR SHOULD BE CENTERED ON TUBE CENTERLINE AS NEAR AS POSSIBLE SO THAT ENTIRE END OF FINISHED ASSEMBLY WILL PASS THROUGH A DRILLED OUT (½ m.) SWAGELOK TUBE FITTING
- USE CLEAR EPOXY FOR ALL ASSEMBLY (TRACON BB-2101 OR EQUAL) m
- METAL TUBE SHOULD NOT BE ELECTRICALLY CONNECTED TO CABLE SHIELD
 - X AND Y DIMENSIONS WILL BE SPECIFIED WITH EACH ORDER OR ANY LEAD
- OPB 710 SENSORS MUST BE SELECTED AND WILL BE SUPPLIED WITH ORDER

Probe Assembly Detail Figure 14. While the dynamics of optical scattering by aerosol particles are complex, a combination of scattering and absorption effects, transistor characteristics and circuit design are combined to provide a signal that is nearly linear over the aerosol concentration range of interest. Once calibrated, the sensors are remarkably stable in their response with time. Figure 15 shows the response curve of the sensors in an exposure environment. The calibration points were taken, using a single sensor, over a period of six months. In a routine exposure environment, unless great care is taken to eliminate errors in gravimetric pad sampling, we believe that the sensor response is more reliable for estimating aerosol concentration than are pad sampling techniques.

TEMPERATURE CONTROL OF AEROSOL GENERATOR

Temperature control of the aerosol generator includes the control of two separate heaters: the Vycor internal rod heater and a tape heater wound on the outside of the generator tube. Chromel-alumel type K thermocouples are used to detect the temperature in the zones appropriate to each of these heaters. Each thermocouple is connected to a Barber-Coleman Model 527Z temperature controller which is capable of modulating up to 20 amperes into the controlled load. These controllers have a digital set-point, analog deviation meter and provide proportional plus automatic reset control action. They also have an adjustable over-temperture alarm which is utilized for automatic Figure 16 shows the electrical circuitry of a temperature shutdown. control network for one generator. A separate temperature limit control (Barber-Coleman Model 121L) has been incorporated into the system to provide a completely independent shutdown circuit operating from its own thermocouple located near the Vycor heater. This was installed to prevent destruction of the generator should the Vycor heater controller fail. (This type of electronic failure is a rare event, but it happened twice in the course of a year and prompted the inclusion of the limit control). If either of the two controllers or the limit control detects a temperature higher than normal, power to the network including the heaters is broken and can be restored only by manual reset after the high temperature conditions clears. As the temperature network shutdown takes place, an extra alarm contact (K2C) actuates a safety control circuit to break power to the oil metering pump to prevent flooding oil into a shutdown generator.

SAFETY CONTROL SYSTEM

With several exposure chambers in operation simultaneously and limited personnel, it is not possible to observe each system at all times. It is necessary to provide some measure of protection for the test animals and the exposure system in case of malfunction of any parts of the system. A block diagram of the safety shutdown system designed for the DF2 exposure system is shown in Figure 17. The relay alarm control acts to shut down the oil metering pump and the tempera-

ORNL-DWG 83-15864



Figure 15. Particle Sensor Response vs. Diesel Oil Aerosol Concentration

ORNL-DWG 81-2328: CN1 ALARM CONTACTS OUTLET NO. 1 TO JACKET HEATER S3 - DPDT TOGGLE SWITCH, SPRING LOADED K2 - STANDARD 120 VAC SIGNAL RELAY K1 - MERCURY POWER RELAY. 20 AMPS AMPHENOL 97 3102A 105L 3P CHASSIS MOUNT CONNECTOR (MATES WITH 97 3106A 105L 3S) S2 - KEY OPERATED SWITCH ں ا 10 E 10 AMP K2C 5 BARBER-COLMAN 6000000 CONTROL 1 - IND DISCONNECT RESET SWITCH INSIDE 121L AND BRING LEADS OUT THROUGH B&C TERMINALS TO NORMALLY CLOSED CONTACTS ON S3 THE RMOCOUPLE RECEPT ACLE BARBER COLMAN PUBLICATION 1252/DB4.5 (PRODUCT INFORMATION) AND PUBLICATION THE TWO CONTROLLERS OR FROM THE LIMIT CONTROL WILL SHUTDOWN THE SYSTEM BY BREAKING THE MAIN POWER THROUGH KIA, THIS IS ACCOMPLISHED BY WIRING ALL ALARM CONTACTS (NORMALLY CLOSED) IN SERIES WITH RELAY COILS K1 AND K2. 4. FOR INFORMATION ON BARBER COLMAN 121L LIMIT CONTROLLER REFER TO BARBER <u>الم</u> SHUTDOWN Š 2. S2 IS A KEY OPERATED SHUTDOWN DEFEAT SWITCH TO BE USED WHEN SETTING ALARMS ETC. OR WHEN THE AUTOMATIC SHUTDOWN FEATURE IS NOT DESIRED 1. CIRCUIT IS DESIGNED SO THAT OVER TEMPERATURE ALARM FROM EITHER OF AUTO ខ 53 3. FOR INFORMATION ON THE BARBER COLMAN 5272 CONTROLLER REFER TO 00 K2A 2 BARBER-COLMAN 121L LIMIT CONTROL 000000000000 Ξ NOTE: 3 ଷ**କ୍ତ୍**ତତ Ģ ę 3 K1A 1252/IN36-1 (INSTRUCTION MANUAL). COLMAN PUBLICATION 1250/IN1-12. IS AMP ABC TC 2 S 00 5 NEUT 000000 BARBER-COLMA CONTROL 2 Ę AMP 120 VAC INPUT NOTES 2 G 2 OUTLET NO. 2 TO ROD HEATER

Temperature Control Network for One Aerosol Generator Figure 16.

-

ALL RELAY CONTACTS ARE SHOWN IN THE "OFF" OR "ALARM" CONDITION. ALL CONTACTS ARE REVERSE FROM THAT SHOWN DURING NORMAL OPERATION.

ŝ

-27-



ture control network as well as to provide an audible alarm for any of the five signals monitored. Shutdown and alarm are provided in case of (a) nitrogen supply failure to the generator, (b) low chamber air flow through the exposure chamber, (c) open chamber door, (d) high temperature in the aerosol generator, and (e) high aerosol concentration. Each is discussed below.

- (a) Nitrogen supply failure to the aerosol monitor. Nitrogen used as carrier gas for the generator is supplied from a liquid nitrogen tank equipped to deliver the gaseous nitrogen. A backup supply of compressed nitrogen cylinders is on hand. Failure of the nitrogen supply causes a loss in aerosol generation with an accumulation of DF2 in the generator tube. Failure can occur by exhausting the liquid nitrogen supply, failure to switch to the compressed nitrogen cylinders, or failure to open the nitrogen shut off valves in each nitrogen delivery line supplying the individual generators. A pressure switch to signal pressure loss was positioned in the delivery line near the generator and connected to the alarm shutdown system as indicated in Figures 17 and 18.
- (b) Low chamber air flow. Low air flow into the chamber could result in high aerosol concentrations invalidating the exposure, or worse, destroying the test animals. An orifice flowmeter was already located in the air discharge line of each chamber to record the flow rate and signal low flow. The low flow alarm signal from this device was connected to the alarm shutdown system.
- (c) <u>Open chamber door</u>. Start-up of the generator system with the door open or opening the door inadvertantly during an exposure will result in escape of the aerosol into the laboratory environment. This could invalidate the exposure and expose laboratory personnel to the test aerosol. An existing switch used to sound an alarm was rerouted to the new alarm shutdown system.
- (d) <u>High temperature in the aerosol chamber</u>. Failure of the temperature control system to the Vycor heater in the generator caused generator meltdown in two instances. To prevent reoccurrence, a separate limit controller was employed in the temperature control network (Figure 16) operated by a separate thermocouple to provide an alarm shutdown independent of the heater controllers.
- (e) <u>High aerosol concentration</u>. Aerosol concentrations above a preselected level would result in an invalid exposure and may result in animal loss. To prevent this occurrence, both of the light scattering monitors (upper and lower) in the exposure chamber were equipped with adjustable alarms activated by aerosol concentrations above the level for which they were



- -









PLOT LIGHT 120 VAC

120 VAC 25 AMP CIRCUIT

00









- CONTACT KIOB SHALL BE RATED IS AMPS, 120 VAC OR BETTER ALL OTHER CONTACTS MAY BE RATED 5 AMPS, 120 VAC ~
- IF ALARM CONTACTS FROM ANY SOURCE ARE REVERSE OF THOSE SHOWN (NO VS NC) USE APPROPRIATE RELAY CIRCUIT. K6, K7 AND K8 CIRCUITS ARE SHOWN FOR NORMALLY OPEN (NO) CONTACTS. K9 CIRCUIT IS SHOWN FOR NORMALLY CLOSED (NC) CONTACTS 3
- LABEL SWITCHES AND PILOT LIGHTS AS INDICATED
- 5. KIC IS CONTACT FROM TEMPERATURE CONTROLLER. SEE DWG 0:5873 2

ORNL-DWG 81-23282

¥6

N2 ALARM CONTACTS (NO)

preset. An out-of-limit concentration at either probe provides for alarm-shutdown of the system.

An electrical schematic detailing the relay system for alarm and shutdown is given in Figure 18. Bypass switches are used around the relay controlling the dropout relay (K10) in order to facilitate startup. Panel lights are used to inform the operator that these switches are activated and a portion of the safety system is bypassed. An audible buzzer alarm is energized for any fault condition and appropriate "acknowledge" and reset pushbutton switches are incorporated in the circuit.

Testing of the system described was conducted by providing the out of limit condition for each of the five parameters and observing the responses. Interruption of the nitrogen supply, restriction of the chamber air flow, opening the chamber door, exceeding generator temperature, and generating high aerosol concentration were each tested repeatedly to insure that the system performed as designed. The tests were repeated after several weeks of normal operation, with satisfactory results.

FOG OIL

The system described above was specifically designed to produce diesel fuel aerosols simulating the processes that occur in the VEESS system. Nevertheless, we have found it applicable to other aerosols that can be produced by evaporation-condensation methods. In particular, we have tested it in laboratory chambers (ca. 300L volume) with Fog Oil. Two examples of the particle monitor responses are shown as Figures 19 and 20. In Figure 19, the aerosol concentration was 0.5 mg/L; in Figure 20 it was 5 mg/L. The chamber was operated under the same conditions as in the diesel fuel study: air flow of 200 L/min, and generator temperatures of 600°C and 350°C. In each figure two response curves are shown; the upper curve is for a particle detector mounted near the top (inlet) of the chamber while the lower curve is for one mounted near the bottom. It can be observed that the generators maintained a uniform concentration over the two hour period of the experiments.



فالمتعادين والملا

いいろうない。日本のためのない







LITERATURE CITED

- (1) Vanderkolk, M., E.A. Brenick, and R.B. Wilson. 1979. AVDS-1790 Series Vehicle Engine Exhaust Smoke System Development, Final Report, ARCSLCR79050. Teledyne Continental Motors, Muskegon, MI. DAAA 1577C-0003.
- (2) Putnam, A.A., and K.W. Lee. 1978. Analysis of Large-Area Screening Systems. Vol. 6. Guidelines to the Selection and Design of a Disseminating System, Progress Report. Contractor Report ARCSL-CR-78027. Battelle Columbus Laboratories, Columbus, Ohio. DAA 15-77-C-0030.
- (3) Dalbey, W.E., and S. Lock. 1982. Inhalation Toxicology of Diesel Fuel Obscurant Aerosol in Sprague-Dawley Rats, Acute Exposures. Final Report, Phase I. Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, TN. Army Project Order Nos. 9600 and 0027.
- (4) Gayle, T.M., C.E. Higgins, and J.R. Stokely. 1979. A Continuous Smoke Monitoring Device for Continuous Animal Exposure Systems. In "Tobacco Smoke Inhalation Bioassay Chemistry," Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, TN. ORNL-5424.
- (5) Wartman, W.B., Jr., E.C. Cogbill, and E.S. Harlow. 1979. Determination of Particulate Matter Concentrated Aerosols. <u>Anal. Chem.</u> <u>31</u>(10): 1705-1709.
- (6) Jenkins, R.A., R.W. Holmberg, J.S. Wike, and J.H. Moneyhun. 1982. The Chemical and Physical Characterization of Diesel Smoke for Inhalation Exposures and Toxicology Studies. Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, TN. Army Project Order Nos. 9600, 0027, 1807, and 2802.

PERSONNEL

The following personnel received support under Army Project Orders 9600, 0027, 1807, 2802 in performance of work described in this report.

M. R. Guerin W. E. Dalbey R. W. Holmberg J. H. Moneyhun T. M. Gayle P. Berlinski M. P. McCann

-36-

PUBLICATIONS

The following publications resulted in whole or in part from the work described in this report.

Holmberg, R. W., J. H. Moneyhun, and W. E. Dalbey. An Exposure System for Toxicological Studies of Concentrated Oil Aerosols. Symposium on Inhalation Toxicology and Technology, Kalamazoo, MI, October 23-24, 1980.

Dalbey, W. E., R. W. Holmberg, J. H. Moneyhun, R. A. Jenkins, S. Lock, and M. R. Guerin. Toxicological Evaluation of Diesel Fuel No. 2. Proc., llth Conference on Environmental Toxicology, Dayton, OH, November 18-20, 1980.

Dalbey, W. E., S. Lock, R. W. Holmberg, J. H. Moneyhun, and M. R. Guerin. Acute Toxicity of an Aerosol of Diesel Fuel. Society of Toxicology Annual Conference, San Diego, CA, March 1-5, 1981.

Jenkins, R. A., R. W. Holmberg, J. H. Moneyhun, and J. S. Wike. Chemical and Physical Characterization of a Diesel Fuel Obscurant for Inhalation Toxicology Studies. Proc., Smoke/Obscurants Symposium V., Harry Diamond Laboratories, Adelphi, MD, April 28-30, 1981.

Dalbey, W. E., S. Lock, R. W. Holmberg, J. H. Moneyhun, and M. R. Guerin. Acute Exposure of Rats to an Inhaled Aerosol of Diesel Fuel. Proc., Smoke/ Obscurants Symposium V, Harry Diamond Laboratories, Adelphi, MD, April 2830, 1981.

Holmberg, R. W., J. H. Moneyhun, and M. P. McCann. An Exposure System for Studies of Concentrated Diesel Fuel Aerosols. 14th Aerosol Technology Meeting, Johns Hopkins University School of Hygiene and Public Health, Baltimore, MD, August 24-29, 1981.

Jenkins, R. A., R. W. Holmberg, J. S. Wike, and J. H. Moneyhun. Chemical Characterization of Diesel Fuel Smoke for Inhalation Exposure and Toxicology Studies. Task Summary Report to U. S. Medical Bioengineering Research and Development Laboratory, Ft. Detrick, Frederick, MD, 1982.

1

-37-

DISTRIBUTION LIST

No. of Copies 4 Commander US Army Medical Research and Development Command ATTN: SGRD-RMS Fort Detrick Frederick, MD 21701 12 Defense Technical Information Center (DTIC) ATTN: DTIC-DDA Cameron Station Alexandria, VA 22314 1 Dean School of Medicine Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences 4301 Jones Bridge Road Bethesda, MD 20014 1 Commandant Academy of Health Sciences, US Army ATTN: AHS-CDM Fort Sam Houston, TX 78234 1 Librarian US Army Medical Bioengineering Research and Development Laboratory ATTN: SGRD-UBZ-I Fort Detrick Frederick, MD 21701 25 Commander US Army Medical Bioengineering Research and Development Laboratory ATTN: SGRD-UBG-M Fort Detrick Frederick, MD 21701 T. M. Gayle 4 Building 3500; B018 Oak Ridge National Laboratory P. O. Box X Oak Ridge, TN 37830

DISTRIBUTION LIST (Cont'd)

No. of Copies

10	M. R. Guerin
	Building 4500-S; E-160
	Oak Ridge National Laboratory
	P. O. Box X
	Oak Ridge, TN 37830
1	R. W. Holmberg
	Building 4500-S; E-160
	Oak Ridge National Laboratory
	P. O. Box X
	Oak Ridge, TN 37830
1	J. H. Moneyhun
	Building 4500-S; E-160
	Oak Ridge National Laboratory
	P. O. Box X
	Oak Ridge, TN 37830
1	Central Research Library
	Building 4500-N
	Oak Ridge National Laboratory
	P. O. Box X
	Oak Ridge, TN 37830
1	Department of Energy
	Oak Ridge Operations
	Attn: Mr. J. A. Lenhard, Assistant Manager
	for Energy Research and Development
	P. O. Box E
	Oak Ridge, TN 37830
1	Document Reference Section
	Building 9711-1
	Oak Ridge National Laboratory
	P. O. Box Y
	Oak Ridge, TN 37830
3	Laboratory Records
	Building 4500-N; H-205
	Oak Ridge National Laboratory
	P. O. Box X
	Oak Ridge, TN 37830

DISTRIBUTION LIST (Cont'd)

٠...

.

1

٠. •

No. of Copies

1

.

1.1

.....

ORNL Patent Office Building 4500-N; M-130 Oak Ridge National Laboratory P. O. Box X Oak Ridge, TN 37830

166

Technical Information Center Department of Energy Oak Ridge, TN 37830 For DOE/TIC 4500 distribution under UC-4 Category

